

# $\mathbf{O}\mathbf{O}$

# **Payments Gateway Services**

Version 1.1 – Mar 2020

# **Table of contents**

Introduction	3
Dashboard	4
Transaction	7
Transactions Details page	7
Transaction Details	9
What can I do within the Transaction Detail Page?	9
Reporting1	0
Business & Merchant Details1	1
Configuration1	2
New Generation Payment Page1	2
Cardholder Details Storage1	3
Virtual Terminal Customisation1	5
Supporting 6012, 6051, & 7299 MCC's1	5
Onboarding a New Portal Merchant1	6
Supporting 3D Secure1	6
Payee Management1	6
User Management	7



### Introduction

Cashflows delivers a range of services designed to help your business manage your payments. These services are delivered through a single, omnichannel platform accessed via a set of powerful API's.

Our new Cashflows gateway service offer customers, leading technology in payments, to accept, protect and analyse payments all through a single access into our friendly-to-use portal.

This guide is designed to help you to understand:

- How you can optimise the usage of the Portal
- What information you can find in the Portal
- What roles and permissions can be assigned to users across your business?
- What reports you can get through Portal to help with transaction reconciliation
- How to customise your payment pages
- · How to set up new beneficiaries

We believe in simplicity and ease of use for you when it comes to processing payments. Therefore, our customer service and integration teams are always available to support your integration journey, or answer any questions you – or your customers – might have.

Please contact us on <a href="mailto:support@cashflows.com">support@cashflows.com</a> or <a href="mailto:integrations@cashflows.com">integrations@cashflows.com</a> and we will be happy to help.

To use this guide, you don't require to have any specialist payment or development knowledge. A basic understanding of payments lifecycle can help to understand payment terms.

If you have any feedback on this guide, please let us know and drop us a line marketing@cashflows.com

#### Copyright 2020 © CashFlows Europe Limited

Copyright 2020 © CashFlows Europe Limited While every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the information contained in this publication, the information is supplied without representation or warranty of any kind, is subject to change without notice and does not represent a commitment on the part of CashFlows Europe limited. CashFlows Europe Limited, therefore, assumes no responsibility and shall have no liability, consequential or otherwise, of any kind arising from this material or any part thereof, or any supplementary materials subsequently issued by CashFlows Europe limited. CashFlows Europe limited has made every effort to ensure the accuracy of this material.



### Dashboard

#### Overview

 $\bigcirc$ 

Our all new Dashboard allows merchants to view their transactions and balances in real-time, so they have constant visibility on their cashflow. The Dashboard can be configured to search in time-periods (i.e. Days, Weeks, Months and even Years) and these time-periods can be compared against one another to compare performance within the 2 time-periods.

On the Portal Dashboard you can find:

- Real Time Sales Volumes:
- Total Volume of Sales
- Turnover Amount
- Average Spend

Across all supported currencies you could trade in:

- Pounds Sterling GBP
- US Dollar USD
- Euros EUR
- Canadian Dollar CAD
- Hong Kong Dollar HKD
- Singapore Dollar SGD
- Australian Dollar AUD
- Swiss Franc CHF
- Danish Krone -DKK
- Japanese Yen JPY
- New Zealand Dollar- NZD
- Norwegian Krone- NOK
- Swedish Krona SEK
- South African Rand ZAR



#### Payments Gateway Services – Version 1.1



There is an additional Dashboards to display your Cashflows Account Balances for ease of reconciliations and end of day reports

**Image 1:** Default Dashboard view – transaction amounts from GBP Merchant Account by day in March 2020 with a comparison from March 2019.

Cashflows	Dashbaard
Rel 5 Portugal ====	
<ul> <li>Dashboard</li> </ul>	Transactions Balance
Transactions	Day Week Month Year 🛱 Custom
🗮 Reporting 🗸 🗸	
>_ Configuration	2 ir 2020 11 Mar 2020 12 Mar 2020 13 Mar 2020 15 Mar 2020 15 Mar 2020 16 Mar 2020 16 Mar 2020 17 Mar 2020 19 Mar 2020 19 Mar 2020 21 Mar 2020 21 Mar 2020 22 Mar 2020 24 Mar 2020 24 Mar 2020 5
Here Your business V	Total number of sales Turnover amount Average spend
论 User Management	29 -55/28/C vs 24 Mar 2019 J GBP 271.85 -542.2010 vs 24 Mar 2019 J -55.49/C vs 24 Mar 2019 J
	新 Sales volume
	5
	u
	0000 01.00 02.00 03.00 04.00 05.00 05.00 07.00 08.00 09.00 10.00 11.00 12.00 13.00 14.00 15.00 16.00 17.00 18.00 19.00 20.00 21.00 22.00 23.00
	■ 51 IPS/2014
RS Log out	
Version W1D eA27 Report Dag	

**Image 2:** Alternative Dashboard view – transaction amounts from GBP Merchant Account by day in March 2020 with a comparison from March 2019.





**Image 3:** Default Dashboard view - transactions from EUR Merchant Account by Month throughout the year to date compared to last year's figures





### Transactions

#### **Overview**

The transactions page is a one-stop view for all your transactions. The Transactions page allows for a customisable view to suit your information needs. This is a real-time transactions page that updates to display all incoming transactions along with their associated status; the status will update as a payment goes through its lifecycle.

Our Transactions page has a free-text search bar which allows you to search for any part of the transaction – be it, the Order Reference, Transaction ID or the customer's name.

Image 4: Portal view - section designated to only display your Cardholder Present Transactions.

Cashflows		Transactions						
Rel 3 Portugal Rel 3 Portugal =	*							
Dashboard			Q. Search			🛗 Select Da	tes 🏹 Filters 📑 Colu	umns
Transactions		Date	Order Reference	Customer Name	Amount requested	Status	Transaction Reference	
E Reporting		24/03/2020, 13:38:33	200321017347641364	test user	14.95 GBP	Falled	200321017347641364	$\rightarrow$
>_ Configuration		24/05/2020, 15:55:52	20032100016///2180	test user	14.95 GBP	Falled	20032100016///2180	>
Your business		24/03/2020, 13:35:20	200321017213554708	Herry Nek	14.95 GBP	Failed	200321017213554708	>
20a User Management		24/03/2020, 13:34:49	200321000134217748	Harry Nak	14.95 Gar	Falled	200321000134217748	$\rightarrow$
100 over management		24/03/2020. 13:32:26	20032101/180000276	test user	14.95 GBP	Failed	20032101/1800002/6	>
		24/03/2020, 13:26:13	200321017213423636	testuser	14.95 GBP	Failed	200321017213423636	$\rightarrow$
		24/03/2020, 13:26:4/	200321000033685524	test user	14.96 tan/	Falled	200321000033685524	$\rightarrow$
		24/03/2020, 13:24:21	200321000000131092	Harry Nak	14.95 GBP	Failed	200321000000131092	>
		24/03/2020, 13:23:01	200321000033554462	Harry Nak	14.95 GSP	Falled	200321000033554452	$\rightarrow$
		24/05/2020, 15:21:51	20032101/1/9869204	Harry Nak	14.95 GBP	Falled	20052101/1/9859204	>
		24/03/2020, 13:21:38	200321017314218000	Herry Nek	14.95 GBP	Failed	200321017314218000	>
		24/03/2020, 13:21:24	200321000000000020	Harry Nak	14.95 Gar	Falled	20032100000000020	$\rightarrow$
		24/03/2020. 13:18:15	200321017347772432	Harry Nak	14.95 GBP	Failed	200321017347772432	$\rightarrow$
		24/03/2020, 12:37:11	SMTcst68	shanthi manojkumar	14.95 GBP	Pending	200321000167903248	$\rightarrow$
		24/03/2020, 12:36:44	SMTest67	shanthi manojkumar	14.96 GBP	Pending	200321000134348816	$\rightarrow$
		24/03/2020, 12:36:01	SMTuslóó	shanthi manojkumar	14.95 GBP	Pending	200321017314086928	>
		24/03/2020, 12:35:21	SMTest65	shanthi manojkumar	14.95 GBP	Paid	200321017347641360	$\rightarrow$
		24/05/2020, 12:05:01	SM21	Testina McTester	0.25 GBP	Pending	20032101/1800002/2	>
		24/03/2020, 12:02:52	5M20	Testina McTester	0.25 GBP	Paid	200321000167772176	$\rightarrow$
		24/03/2020, 11:56:07	SM19	Testina McTester	0.25 taur	Pending	200321000134217744	$\rightarrow$
		24/03/2020. 11:54:50	SM18	Testina McTester	0.25 GBP	Paid	200321000033685520	>
B local		24/03/2020, 11:52:04	5M17	Testina McTester	0.25 GBP	Paid	200321017213423632	>
tog out		24/03/2020, 11:51:2/	SM16	Testina Van McTester	0.26 GBP	Falled	20032101/213554/04	>

#### **Transaction Details Page**

By selecting a transaction from within the Transactions Page, you can view the Transaction Details Page, which gives you an extended view of all the data for that particular transaction. The transaction details page is useful to be able to fully track payments and understand who and how the payment was created. This can solve customer queries and potentially avoid any disputes associated with the payments.

**Image 5**: The Transactional Details Page displays Issuers and Acquirers Response codes and status. Issuer and Acquirer response codes can be helpful to understand the transaction lifecycle and potentially avoid any queries or disputes.

i 3 Portugal 3 Portugal	#	Payment - 2	200321000167772	2176				
Dashboard		Details Order Inform	nation Advanced Capture	Refund				
] Transactions				0				
Reporting	~	Payment Details	24/07/0020 12:02:52	Custor	ier informa	Testing M	Tester	
Configuration		Order Reference	SM20	E-mail add	ress	kerriman	stield@cashf	flow
Your business	$\sim$	Payment Status	Paid			s.com	nord group in	
User Management		Dato & Timo Pald	24/03/2020, 12:03:27	Telephone	Number	+44 1279 4	135676	
		Amount To Collect	0.25 GBP	Date & Tim	e	24/03/20	20, 12:02:52	
		Amount Collected	0.25 CBP	Billing Add	ress	Testina Me	Tester	
		Amount Paid	0.25 GBP			Unit 7	Jenne Koau	
		Payment Methods	Creditcard			XX12 1XX GB	FestCity	
		Reference	200321000167772176			Telephon	e Number: +	44
		Traco Reference	200320104706013192 View →	Shipping A	ddress	John Doe	/0	
		Locale	en_GB			Addresslin	1e1 1e2	
		Refund status	-			cm21 9fy	Cambridge	
		Reversal status	-			GB Telephone 1223 5657	e Number: + 58	44
		Payment History					E Colum	nns
		Date & Time	Reference	Amount	Payment Metho	ods	Status	
		24/03/2020, 12:02:52	200321117230200852	0.25 GBP	Creditcard		Paid	>



### Transaction details

#### What can I do within the Transaction Details Page?

#### Refunding

Refunds can be completed within the Transaction Details Page. Refunds have their own tab – to make this as clear as possible for you and your staff – and it supports Partial Refunds.

#### Voids

Voids can be completed within the Transaction Details Page. Voids will have their own tab to make this as clear as possible for users. You can void a transaction that has been made. While a transaction is still in an authorisation state, a void can be completed through the portal to avoid charges to the customers account.

#### Capture

You may choose to capture transactions, manually, or in bulk at the end of the day. Captures are very useful when you sell goods that require stock management and you need to ensure you have adequate stock before proceeding with the transaction. You can complete the manual capture of transactions in Transaction Details Page. Capture has its own tab to make this process as clear as possible for you and your staff to use.

#### Debugging

As part of Portal, there is also a debugging feature to help support your integration teams, as much as possible, during the integration process. Once you have started trading, you can use it to see a clear display of why a particular transaction has failed.

You can simply look through the trace table, which displays all the steps a transaction has undergone; within the logs you can see details that should help discover potential issues. This can help you to resolve issue in-house or further you can contact CashFlows to help you resolve an issue.

Image 6: Debugging information for issue resolution

Cashflows		Back to payment								
Rel 3 Portugal Rel 3 Portugal	#	Trace - 20	032010470	6013192						
Dashboard		Diagram Table								
									Show adv	/anced
Reporting	~	Trace table							E Col	lumns
>_ Configuration		Sequence	Date & Time	Diagnostic	State	From	То	Success	IP Address	
Hour business	~	200320200000034946	24/03/2020, 12:02:51		CreatePaymentJob	Merchant	PaymentGatewayApi	True	188.39.78.45, 2.18.66.117, 95.101.12	9.175
250 User Manarement		20032020000034947	24/03/2020, 12:02:52		Authenticate	PaymentGatewayApi	Authentication	True		
-28 open management		20032020000034948	24/03/2020, 12:02:52	Response time: 113 ms.	Authenticate	Authentication	PaymentGatewayApi	True		
		20032020000034949	24/03/2020, 12:02:52		GetConfiguration	PaymentProcessor	ConfigStore	True		
		20032020000034950	24/03/2020, 12:02:52	Response time: 30 ms.	GetConfiguration	ConfigStore	PaymentProcessor	True		
		200320200000034951	24/03/2020, 12:02:52		StorePaymentJob	PaymentProcessor	StateStore	True		_
		Content Type: applic Content Type: applic Content Content Type: applic Content Content Type: Accept Type Accept Type ( f f f f f f f f f f f f f f f f f f	atticityison; charactery ve p, deflate Action//SUBERNADOLONG Conference C	17-8 2003 11 YK 100 (2004) (2004) (2004) 100 (2004)		SSHIDT2552CL (WWV780K CT 2007g07AAAAT291 - 30 LXX05 TH 22QACT07 4320 W7710HAAC20 TH 2007G041 27X10 W7210HAAC20 TH 2007G041 27X10 W7210HAAC2004AAAT291 X711 CSANADAAAT291 X711 CSANADAAAAT291 X711 CSANADAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	er Ethedekuus TC(2010/al) ad CRI 2000200-adentiti at MARCAMAR S (SWO-2010) End 2010/al CRI 2010/al End	ChaG1vbk1 jluctusyza= VD63Vud+O O vdm1y2la R1VnSvck1 BaaHSnQAR NitaaNS1NgN t1 22X19A4p 51072FyZAA QcfaNeY302 421baRTd5F		54 III 22 JH 14 III 22 III 14 III 12 III 14 III 12 III 14 III 12 III 14 IIIII 14 III 14 III 14 III 14 III 14 III 14 III 14 IIII 14 III 14 IIII 14 III 14 IIII 14 III 14 IIII 14 III 14 IIII 14 III 14 IIIII 1
RS Log out	and first	MS0ck0VBAAAAzAATQQAA 30(10kAkb3300A308bb91b aVin2X31baA3agevcRr	B352M21cmVoY2UAEPiDqf nRUb9NvbGx1Y3Q4BQ4A4D 8cCCUNy2WE92URbdGYUaM	Sucert 3Q331Y3011RGF 82W1pb4 NuMjUAC1N1cmNoYX3m2UFtb3 L1V90R5A4KLbAxxAQAAAkF5d0	AVVGRACotsCHEEBAAAEUGF556WAude11dGBv274 NudAAQQ29udwVydGV6vG98Y468B84915eQACk8 i1vbgASAAAABG12cGzhekhvc3R1ZFBh22(ABFE	MFwAAAATwAAxAAADCeWk WonZlenR1ZENIenJ1bmN5 JheW11bnRNZXRob2RzABcA	ixin jiyasianaa uuu silaan yaa Aqob2522X3 yawa uuu fo20 Iaacmaal aaaa03312g1oys	NgAAABQZARS QAKUGFpZEF RFyZAAAA3N	kaWSmAAp#YXX880CJyb33520EvcmQACkF tb3VudAAEU3R1cHMArgAAAAMaAXYAAAA 8YXR1cuATAAAADGVu261u2uACQW1vdM5	id SU WW



### Reporting

#### Overview

The Portal presents different reporting views, here you can choose to download reports in either a CSV or XLS format. You can configure the reports to display all sales and settlements from all your Cashflows Accounts. You can also configure the report by date and transaction amount, which can help with bookkeeping.

All reports contain a search bar so you can search for a specific transaction when you know the reference or order reference of the payment.

These are the reports available for your use:

- Merchant Account Statement a summary of all your transactions during a selected period
- Reserve Account Statement shows the rolling or fixed reserve that you hold with Cashflows
- Security Account Statement shows all sales that have a High-Risk Warning raised and are awaiting response from issuing banks
- Remittance Account Statement the funds we have sent to you and when
- Invoice Account Statement (for our Gross-Settlement Merchants) view your paid and outstanding invoices in Invoice Account Statement , when you pay your invoice via direct debit or settlement to Cashflows
- Costs Account Statement costs applied to transactions during the specified time period
- Settlement Batch Report monies batched ready for your settlement
- Batch Detail Report

Image 7: Merchant account statement report showing transactions during a given period of time

Cashflows							
Rel 3 Portugal 😅	Merchar	it account s	statement				€⊞ GBP ∨
<ul> <li>Dashboard</li> </ul>	Account credits an	d debits information. Iran	isaction amount and transaction rees.				
Transactions			Q Search		Select Dates	Tilters 🕒 Export	E Columns
Reporting ^	Reference	Date & Time	Description	Туре	Credit	Debit	Balance
Merchant account statement	16614759	02/10/2019, 11:16:43	Sale 01S00AC3759	Sale Settlement	17.07 GBP		17,676.67 GBP
Decemental designed	16614759	02/10/2019, 11:16:43	Sale 01SODAC3759	Merchant Service Charge		-0.29 GBP	17,676.38 GBP
reperve statement.	16614792	02/10/2019, 11:22:15	Sale 01S00AC376B	Sale Settlement	6.35 GBP		17,682.73 GBP
Security statement	16614792	02/10/2019, 11:22:15	Sale 01S00AC3768	Merchant Service Charge		-0.18 G8P	17,682.55 GBP
Remittance statement	16614825	02/10/2019, 11:29:47	Sale 01S00AC377E	Sale Settlement	13.01 GBP		17,695.56 GBP
Invoice statement	16614825	02/10/2019, 11:29:47	Sale 01S00AC377E	Merchant Service Charge		-0.36 GBP	17,695.20 GBP
Costs statement	16614866	02/10/2019, 11:38:59	Sale 01S00AC3796	Sale Settlement	20.04 GBP		17,715.24 GBP
Settlement batch	16614866	02/10/2019, 11:38:59	Sale 01SODAC3796	Merchant Service Charge		-0.36 G8P	17,714.88 GBP
Carformilan	16614998	02/10/2019, 12:00:53	Sale 01S00AC37C9	Sale Settlement	1.05 G8P		17,715.93 GBP
- Coniguration	16614998	02/10/2019, 12:00:53	Sale 01S00AC37C9	Merchant Service Charge		-0.02 GBP	17,715.91 GBP
🖶 Your business 🗸 🗸	16615052	02/10/2019, 12:14:40	Sale 01S00AC37E9	Sale Settlement	17.65 G8P		17,733.56 GBP
🛞 User Management	16615052	02/10/2019, 12:14:40	Sale 01S00AC37E9	Merchant Service Charge		-0.30 GBP	17,733.26 GBP
	16615133	02/10/2019, 12:29:44	Sale 01500AC380F	Sale Settlement	17.37 GBP		17,750.63 GBP
	16615133	02/10/2019, 12:29:44	Sale 01S00AC380F	Merchant Service Charge		-0.48 GBP	17,750.15 GBP
	16615155	02/10/2019, 12:36:21	Sale 01500AC381D	Sale Settlement	3.37 GBP		17,753.52 GBP
	16615155	02/10/2019, 12:36:21	Sale 01S00AC381D	Merchant Service Charge		-0.10 GBP	17,753.42 GBP
	16615180	02/10/2019, 12:39:18	Void Sale 01500AC377E	Void Merchant Service Charge	0.36 GBP		17,753.78 GBP
	16615180	02/10/2019, 12:39:18	Void Sale 01500AC377E	Vold Sale Settlement		-13.01 G8P	17,740.77 GBP
	16615346	02/10/2019, 13:07:49	Void Sale 01500AC37E9	Vold Merchant Service Charge	0.30 GBP		17,741.07 GBP
	16615346	02/10/2019, 13:07:49	Void Sale 01500AC37E9	Vold Sale Settlement		-17.65 GBP	17,723.42 GBP
	16615358	02/10/2019, 13:12:36	Sale 01500AC3881	Sale Settlement	29.73 G8P		17,753.15 GBP
RS Log out	16615358	02/10/2019, 13:12:36	Sale 01S00AC3881	Merchant Service Charge		-0.50 GBP	17,752.65 GBP

#### $\bigcirc$

#### **Business and Merchant details**

The Portal's Business Details page displays all the information you provided to us, as part of the boarding process. This page also displays all associated Merchant Accounts within your Business Account. It's here that a Business-level user can see all the associated Merchant Accounts.

Image 8: Business Account view with one associated Merchant Account that the user can view

Cashflows		Business ov	erview - Rel 3 F	Portugal
Rel 3 Portugal	₽			
🐼 Dashboard		Business Details		
Transactions		Business Name	Rel 3 Portugal	
		Business ID	437	
E Keporting		Address	Lisbon	
>_ Configuration		City	Lisbon	
Hour business		Country	PT	
		Post Code	333333	
Merchant details		Company Registration Number	1234566	
🖄 Virtual terminal		Signatories First & Last Name	Neale Hays	
		Business URL	http://books.com	
		Associated Merch	nants	≣≣ Colum
		Merchant ID	Merchant Name	Status
		1132	Rel 3 Portugal	Live
				1 - 1 of 1 Rows per page: 10
BO Log out				
Version 810-6669 R	laport Dag			

Image 9: The view of a Merchant Account Details page.

Cashflows		← Back to Business Details	
Rel 3 Portugal Rel 3 Portugal	₽	Merchant o	verview – Re
🐼 Dashboard		Merchant Details	
ST: Transactions		Merchant Name	Rel 3 Portugal
Reporting		Merchant Reference	1132
>_ Configuration		Customer Services Email	help@books.com
🖶 Your business		Customer Services	01223333333
Business details		Merchant Url	http://books.com
		Support URL	http://books.com
🖄 Virtual termin	hal $\sim$		
BO Log out	Report Bur		



### Configuration

Within the Configuration page of the portal, you can view and amend some of your settings. You can also decide if you will opt-in to any of our additional products and services.

#### **Additional Services:**

#### New Generation Payment Pages (More on this later)

You can completely configure your Payment Page with the "What You See Is What You Get" Payment Page Builder.

#### Order Confirmation Emails

You can opt-in for us to send an Order Confirmation Email to your customers, triggered by statuses the transaction goes through. If opted-in, we will send the customer an email upon; payment processing, refunds & voids.

The email will be sent using your logo rather than our Cashflows logo, when you upload your logo file. Logos are uploaded within the portal's configuration page.

#### Payment Abandonment Emails

We can send them an Abandonment Email, when you use our HPP and the customer abandons the payment process. If you pass us the email address of the logged-in customer – once a payment has started, if there are items left in a pending state for a [configurable] period of inactivity, we have a service that sends a reminder-email to your customer – giving them an opportunity to make the payment now.

The email can be also sent using your logo rather than our Cashflows logo, if you prefer. Logos are uploaded within the portal's configuration page.

#### • Cardholder Details Storage (More on this later)

We offer you the ability to store the customer's information on file. When configured, a "Customer Account" can be set up within the customer search function of the Virtual Terminal and it can also be accessed with the HPP. This functionality enables you to store tokenised card details for a customer – to speed up virtual terminal transactions (Note: CVV cannot be stored)

#### Address Verification Services

You have the option for AVS checks within transactions. AVS checks offer an additional level of security for transactions; when selected you will see whether the address verification has been successful or not. This can help to lower fraud.

#### **New Generation Payment Pages**

You can now fully customise your Hosted Payment Pages with our new "What You See Is What You Get" (WYSIWYG) Payment Page Builder.

This brand-new feature allows you to completely change the look and feel of your Payment Page. It's completely up to you whether it's logos added, colour of the background or an image being added, to the actual text and button size! It's your page!

This builder also includes the ending scenarios of how the Payment Page should change when a transaction is rejected at that stage - you even can define how a success message is displayed.

You can choose to have as many customisable Payment Pages as you need.



#### Payments Gateway Services – Version 1.1

### Cashflows

#### Image 10: Hosted Payment Page builder

← Bock Draft	
Simulate Payments	Out floor
Succesful Payment Button Background color	Cashriows
#7218bd	иц
Succesful Payment Button Hover Background Color	Content CER RANKING CARP OD.OD
#663ead	
Succesful Payment Button Active And Focus Background Color	This paperet is accordy provided by DelfTean Or privacy detected
#50387a	
Succesful Payment Button Text color	
######	
Succesful Payment Button Border Radius	
30	
Falled Payment Button Background color	
#7218bd	
Failed Payment Button Hover Background Color	
#663ead	
Falled Payment Button Active And Focus Background Color	
#5b389a	
Failed Payment Button Text color	
******	
Falled Payment Button Border Radius px	
Save changes	

Image 11: Hosted Payment Page builder with some customisation applied

← Exit colitor Draft	
Test	Oct
Logo >	Cashriows
Slobal font >	
age Background >	CHEM 2020-0-1450 CEP 66.66
ntent Header >	
ontent Body >	<back card="" td="" 💞<=""></back>
ment Methods Detail Navbar >	Card Number
nyment Methods >	0000 0000 0000 0000
yment Method Detail Forms >	Expiration Month Expiration Year
ment Method Detail Credit Card >	MM V YY V
late Payments >	Samity and a
ifications >	000 O What is this?
isclosure >	
	Payusing Cand
	Carcel psyment
	This payment is securely processed by <u>EarthTown</u> Our <u>private/statement</u>
Save chanzes	

#### **Cardholder Details Storage**

As part of Portal, you have the option to save cardholder details for returning customers. This is a great opportunity to improve workflow performance when you process recurring transaction or have loyal customers with repeat purchases.

If you take payments over the phone, this feature eases the need to take payment details each time. You can look-up your customers via the search function – when there is a card already saved against ypour customer, then the only information you need to input is the cardholders CVV. Once a customer has been selected, all relevant fields within the VT are auto-populated to speed-up the process, so that there is nothing else you need to fill-in other than the amount, order reference (which helps to identify the transaction at a later stage) and the cardholder CVV.



Cardholder Details Storage also works extremely well when you use our payment page through your website. Where a customer signs in and passes their information, we can store the information and within the payment page we can return their saved cards for ease.

Cashflows Virtu Search Customer × Amount Dashboard Q Search Order Re + New Customer Reporting Order No Configuration Cancel S E-mail Q Search Customer Payment Method \* Card O Payment Link al settings Card Number \* Expiration Month \*  $\sim$ Expiration Year \* Security Code \* What is this? BO Log out

Image 12: Portal customer search within the Virtual terminal.

**Image 13:** A customer is offered the option to save their card details for future use whilst utilising your Customised Payment Page.



### Virtual terminal customisation

 $\overline{}$ 

Our Portal offers a fully configurable Virtual Terminal - You can decide to keep your Virtual Terminal orders as simple as possible – just include the customer's name alongside their card details. But you can also choose to add further details from within the Virtual Terminal Settings tab.

The amount of customisation that you – as the merchant can do – will vary depending on whether they have opted-in for any additional services within their configuration.

**Image 14:** Virtual Terminal view opted-in for AVS with the Address Fields within the Virtual Terminal set as mandatory



#### CD Supporting 6012, 6051, 7299 MCC'sS

Merchants with the following MCC's

- 6012 (Financial Services)
- 6051(Non-Financial Institutions)
- 7299 (Miscellaneous Personal Services)

are required to send 4 additional fields during a payment. These fields are known as the Recipient Details and the fields are -

- Date of Birth
- Last Name
- Postcode
- Primary Account Number

Within the portal, if you are onboarded with one of the mentioned MCC's, these Recipient Detail fields will automatically be added and set as mandatory within the Virtual Terminal Order Screen alongside being mandated for our Payment Page transactions.



### Onboarding a new Portal Merchant

The Onboarding process has been kept simple to prevent any disruption to your onboarding journey with us.

As we welcome you as a new Portal Merchant, our boarding team will simply ensure that the our Gateway services are set up for you and that your pricing plans is in place – allowing for the immediate use of our Gateway services.

Once the Gateway Pricing Plan has been completed, you will receive a *Welcome Letter* at the email address provided on the application (most probably your registered primary email address); the first email sent will be an automated email for you to complete. Once we receive your response, we will set you up as a user with permission as your Business' **Portal Owner**, which allows you to add additional users within the User Management Page within the Portal.

### Supporting 3D-Secure

The Portal supports your use of 3D Secure as part of Strong Customer Authentication within the European Economic Area. During the onboarding process, we will identify whether you will be required to send 3D Secure transactions only, or if you can send non-3D Secure transactions, as well (these would be exempt from SCA). The portal's Transaction Details page supports and returns all SCA data for your use.

Within the Portal, if you are required to send 3D Secure transactions only – it will be displayed to you within your Card Configuration page. If you are mandated 'Required to send 3D Secure Transactions,' this option is turnedon but is not editable. However, if you are allowed to send both 3D Secure and non-3D Secure transactions, you will have the choice via a toggle to make 3D Secure transactions, a requirement for yourself or to keep it turned off – In which case we will accept non-3D Secure transactions alongside your 3D Secure ones.

### Dayee Management

Payee Management within the Portal allows you to specify where your money gets paid!

The Payee Management page allows for a more flexible approach to setting up a Payee, so whether you have one account where you want all funds to be paid, or you decide this needs to be changed, you can amend this as frequently as necessary. All details are compliance-checked through an automatic PEPs & Sanctions check to keep your money safe.

Note: The existing Portal Payee Management currently covers our existing Auto-Remittance process only.



### User Management

 $\square$ 

The User Management Pages allow for fully self-serve user management.

You can enable as many users as you need for your business. The User Management Pages allow for a **Portal Owner** to create and edit other users within the Merchant or even Business context. Use our Password Management function to allow certain users the permission to unlock other users that have been locked-out - including the ability to send a "Create New Password" email to that locked-out user.

The User Management functionality aims to put control into your hands!

You will have the option to choose which role that you assign to your users. The currently available roles are:

- **Portal Owner:** The main administrator for the Portal. This is typically management/owner level access as it gives the ability to view all available features on the portal without restriction.
- Finance User: This role gives the user access to all reports and dashboards.
- Sales User: This role gives the user the ability to view transactions alongside being able to process refunds and voids against existing transactions
- Virtual Terminal User: This role gives the user the ability to post Virtual Terminal Transactions only.

